OJSC MOSTOTREST
Consolidated Financial Statements
for 2013
and Auditors’ Report

OJSC MOSTOTREST

Contents
Auditors’ Report

3

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

5

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 6
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

7

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9

2

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for 2013

Mln RUB

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Results from operating activities
Finance income
Finance costs
Net finance costs
Share of profit of equity accounted investees (net of income tax)
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Related income tax
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Profit
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RUB)

Note

7
8(a)

8(b)
8(c)
9
9

12

5
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2013
Total (Continuing
operations)

Continuing
operations

2012
Discontinued
operation

Total

116,714
(102,704)
14,010
394
(6,168)
(2,717)
5,519
202
(2,409)
(2,207)
229
3,541
(1,288)
2,253

94,078
(80,990)
13,088
222
(4,968)
(506)
7,836
592
(2,797)
(2,205)
180
5,811
(1,723)
4,088

31,031
(29,336)
1,695
351
(1,194)
(583)
269
181
(103)
78
347
(111)
236

123,705
(108,920)
14,785
558
(6,160)
(1,079)
8,104
640
(2,766)
(2,126)
180
6,158
(1,834)
4,324

6
2,259

4,088

236

4,324

14
(3)
11
2,270

23
(4)
19
4,107

236

23
(4)
19
4,343

1,916
343
2,259

4,074
14
4,088

236
236

4,310
14
4,324

1,927
343
2,270

4,093
14
4,107

236
236

4,329
14
4,343

6.77

14.50

0.84

15.34
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The consolidated statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of, the consolidated financial statements set
out on pages 9 to 58.

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for 2013

Mln RUB
S hare capital
Balance at 1 January 2012
Total comprehensive income
Profit
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets
Income tax on other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in
equity
Treasury shares sold (Note 20)
Dividends to equity holders (Note 20)
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
Acquisition of subsidiary with non-controlling interest
(Note 26)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest without a change
in control (Note 26)
Balance at 31 December 2012
Total comprehensive income
Profit
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets
Income tax on other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in
equity
Dividends to equity holders (Note 20)
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
Net result on disposal of subsidiary and acquisition of
non-controlling interests (Notes 6 and 27(b))
Balance at 31 December 2013

136

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Reserve for
Additional
available-forReserve for
Retained
paid-in
sale financial
own shares
earnings
capital
assets
6,192
107
(561)
12,809

Noncontrolling
interests

Total

Total equity

18,683

(7)

18,676

-

-

-

-

4,310

4,310

14

4,324

-

-

23
(4)
19

-

4,310

23
(4)
4,329

14

23
(4)
4,343

-

(143)
-

-

561
-

(2,004)

418
(2,004)

-

418
(2,004)

-

-

-

-

-

-

235

235

136

6,049

126

-

(227)
14,888

(227)
21,199

(15)
227

(242)
21,426

-

-

-

-

1,916

1,916

343

2,259

-

-

14
(3)
11

-

1,916

14
(3)
1,927

343

14
(3)
2,270

-

-

-

-

(2,201)

(2,201)

(109)

(2,310)

136

6,049

137

-

(89)
14,514

(89)
20,836

461

(89)
21,297
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The consolidated statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of, the consolidated financial statements set out on pages 9 to 58.

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

1.

Reporting entity

(a)

Business environment
The Group’s operations are located in the Russian Federation. Consequently, the Group is exposed
to the economic and financial markets of the Russian Federation which display characteristics of an
emerging market. The legal, tax and regulatory frameworks continue development, but are subject
to varying interpretations and frequent changes which together with other legal and fiscal
impediments contribute to the challenges faced by entities operating in the Russian Federation. The
consolidated financial statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of the Russian
business environment on the operations and the financial position of the Group. The future business
environment may differ from management’s assessment.

(b)

Organisation and operations
OJSC Mostotrest (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) comprise Russian open joint
stock companies (OAO) and limited liability (OOO) companies as defined in the Civil Code of the
Russian Federation and a company located in Cyprus. The Company was established as a stateowned enterprise in 1930. The Company was privatised as an open joint stock company in
December 1992.
The Company’s registered office is 6 Barklaya str., bld. 5, Moscow, 121087, Russian Federation.
The Group’s principal activity is the construction of transport infrastructure assets, including
railway, highway and city bridges, overpasses, interchanges, and other engineering structures for
the state municipal entities. The Group’s major customers are government agencies and other
public bodies. The Group primarily operates in the European part of the Russian Federation.
The Company’s shares are traded under MSTT symbol on Moscow Interbank Currency Exchange
(MICEX) stock exchange in Russia.

2.

Basis of accounting
Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

3.

Functional and presentation currency
The national currency of the Russian Federation is the Russian Rouble (“RUB”), which is the
Company’s functional currency and the currency in which these consolidated financial statements
are presented. All financial information presented in RUB has been rounded to the nearest million.

4.

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from those estimates.

9

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the
following notes:
•

Note 24(c)(ii) – allowances for trade receivables;

•

Note 35(c)(i) – revenue recognition of сonstruction contracts in progress;

•

Note 35(j) – useful life of property, plant and equipment.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment within the next financial year is included in the following notes:
•

Note 14 – equity-accounted investees;

•

Note 30 – contingencies;

•

Note 35(c)(i) – revenue recognition of сonstruction contracts in progress.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.
• Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
• Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the
following notes:
• Note 24– financial instruments.
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OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

5.

Operating segments
Under the current structure, the Group is organized into construction and services business
segments. The construction segment includes Mostotrest and TSM, while services segment
includes rapidly expanding entities Mostotrest-Service (former NITP) and UTS.
The financial information for the segments is prepared in accordance with the same accounting
standards as those used to prepare the Group’s consolidated financial statements under IFRS.
The financial information presented to the Group’s CEO is derived from the internal management
reports. The Group’s CEO reviews operating performance of the segments on at least a quarterly
basis and allocates resources on this basis.
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OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013
Financial me asure / Se gme nt

Continuing ope rations

Construction
2013
Revenue
-external revenue
-intersegment revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

2013

Consolidate d Group

ETS

Se rvice s

2012

Eliminations and othe r

Discontinuie d
ope ration

2012

2013

2013

2012

2013

2012

2012

106,861

91,224

10,700

2,864

1,371

31,031

(2,218)

(31,041)

116,714

94,078

106,656

89,995

9,937

2,848

1,371

30,991

(1,250)

(29,756)

116,714

94,078

205

1,229

763

16

-

40

(968)

(1,285)

-

-

(94,998)

(78,429)

(8,654)

(2,576)

(1,263)

(29,336)

2,211

29,351

(102,704)

(80,990)

11,863

12,795

2,046

288

108

1,695

(7)

(1,690)

14,010

13,088

Operating profit

3,982

7,755

1,435

67

33

269

69

(255)

5,519

7,836

Profit before income tax

2,508

6,213

1,292

42

13

347

(272)

(791)

3,541

5,811

Income tax expense
Se gme nt re sult

(955)
1,553

(1,711)
4,502

(284)
1,008

(13)
29

(7)
6

(111)
236

(42)
(314)

112
(679)

(1,288)
2,253

(1,723)
4,088

Depreciation and amortisation
Share of profit of equity accounted investees, net of
income tax
Dividends payable and non-controlling interest,
recognised as finance cost
Capital expenditures

3,302

2,922

381

332

9

104

(10)

(105)

3,682

3,253

262

180

-

-

-

-

(33)

-

229

180

110
3,139

(1,477)
4,985

1,941

635

(14)
2

(51)
137

(316)
(3)

51
(137)
-

(220)
5,080

(1,477)
5,620

Non-current assets

31,793

30,702

3,959

1,085

-

816

(3,313)

(5,133)

32,439

27,470

Current assets

80,345

53,892

1,505

1,514

-

12,367

508

(10,935)

82,358

56,838

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

14,596

-

14,596

112,138

84,594

5,464

2,599

-

13,183

(2,805)

(1,472)
-

114,797

98,904

Assets classified as held for sale
Total asse ts
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale
Total liabilitie s
Non-controlling inte re st

1,941

2,806

2,340

337

-

29

(1,124)

(29)

3,157

3,143

89,549

59,053

1,785

1,657

-

13,462

(991)

(13,181)

90,343

60,991

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

13,344

-

13,344

91,490

61,859

4,125

1,994

-

13,491

(2,115)

134

93,500

77,478

-

-

-

-

-

-

461

227

461

227
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OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

Major customers
In 2013, revenue from two customers individually exceeded 10% of the Group’s total revenue.
Revenue from one of the customers accounted for RUB 33,063 million (28% of the Group’s total
revenue) and is included in the construction and service segments. The other customer contributed
RUB 17,699 million (15% of the Group’s total revenue) and is included in the construction and
service segments.
In 2012, revenue from two customers individually exceeded 10% of the Group’s total revenue.
Revenue from one of the customers accounted for RUB 22,619 million (24% of the Group’s total
revenue) and is included in the construction and service segments. The other customer contributed
RUB 18,448 million (20% of the Group’s total revenue) and is included in the construction and
service segments.

6.

Discontinued operation
On 31 January 2013 the Group exchanged its 51% interest in OOO EngTransStroy (ETS) which
constituted a separate operating segment for an additional share in OOO TransStroyMekhanizatsia
(TSM) through a number of transactions to increase the group’s ownership interest from 50,1% to
76%. Prior to the transactions, the same counterparty controlled significant minority interests in
both TSM and ETS. All the exchange transactions were negotiated on a combined basis between
the Group and above mentioned non-controlling shareholders; therefore the result on the
transactions was reported on a net basis.
The ETS segment was a discontinued operation and classified as held for sale as at
31 December 2012. Management committed to a plan to sell this segment in late 2012 following a
strategic decision to dispose of subsidiaries with general contractor competence without own
production facilities.
Disposal of interest in ETS
Consideration receivable for shares in ETS
Group's share in ETS's net assets derecognised
Goodwill derecognised
Tax effect

560
234
(1,291)
328
(169)

Acquisition of interest in TSM
Consideration payable for shares in TSM
Carrying amount of 25.9% interest acquired

(681)
677
(4)
(173)

Net result on transactions recognised in equity
2013

Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash from investing activities
Net cash from financing activities
Net cash flows for the period

2012

(1,448)
(3)
(7)
(1,458)

(2,883)
517
59
(2,307)

13

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

Disposal group held for sale
At 31 December 2012, the disposal group comprised of the following assets and liabilities:
31 December 2012

Mln RUB

Non-current assets
Trade receivables (incl. amounts due from customers on construction
contracts)
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Assets classified as held for sale

2,168
9,845
1,790
793
14,596

Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables (incl. amounts due to customers on construction
contracts)
Other current liabilities
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
Net assets directly associated with disposal group

7.

1,000
12,357
(13)
13,344
1,252

Revenue
Mln RUB
Revenue from contracts for construction of:
bridges and highways
airfields and airports
other facilities
Total revenue from construction contracts
Revenue from maintenance and repair of roads
Other revenue
Total revenue

2013

2012

98,418
6,394
1,016
105,828
9,939
947
116,714

77,616
8,200
4,729
90,545
2,855
678
94,078

Below is the information on the geographical allocation of revenues from construction contracts.
This allocation is made based on the geographical location of construction sites:
Mln RUB
Central Federal District
Southern Federal District
Northwestern Federal District
Far Eastern Federal District
Volga Federal District
Siberian Federal District
Total revenue from construction contracts

2013
76,090
21,206
4,588
2,132
1,778
34
105,828

2012
53,359
22,413
4,281
2,826
6,295
1,371
90,545

As at 31 December 2013 revenue from construction contracts for total amount of
RUB 19,885 million (2012: RUB 26,672 million) were pledged as a security under guarantees
issued to customers by banks on behalf of the Group.
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8.

Income and expenses

(a)

Cost of sales
Mln RUB
Services of subcontractors
Materials
Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Machinery, equipment, transport, and labor services provided
by third parties
Fuel
Insurance
Services of principal contractors
Other

(b)

2012
51,781
18,915
14,412
3,418

34,022
19,769
11,812
3,064

3,055
2,147
1,326
437
7,213
102,704

2,682
2,160
964
609
5,908
80,990

Administrative expenses
Mln RUB
Personnel expenses
Social expenses
Taxes other than income tax
Consulting and audit services
Depreciation and amortisation
Rent expense
Materials
Insurance
Bank fees
Other

(c)

2013

2013

2012
3,606
396
359
319
264
170
143
139
32
740
6,168

2,959
369
252
187
189
130
171
141
48
522
4,968

Other expenses
Mln RUB
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, prepayments and
loans given
Allowance for obsolete inventories
Fines and penalties
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for claims received
Other expenses

2013

2012
2,142
180
68
56
52
219
2,717

154
46
165
141
506
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

9.

Net finance costs
Mln RUB
Recognised in profit or loss:
Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income on loans given
Foreign exchange gain
Effect of discounting the financial assets and liabilities
Other finance income
Total finance income
Interest expense on borrowings
Interest expense on finance leases
Effect of discounting the financial assets and liabilities
Non-controlling interests
Finance costs
Net finance costs recognised in profit or loss

10.

2013

2012
107
35
50
3
7
202

551
36
5
592

(1,586)
(603)
(220)
(2,409)
(2,207)

(695)
(503)
(122)
(1,477)
(2,797)
(2,205)

Earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share at 31 December 2013 was based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of RUB 1,916 million (2012: RUB 4,310 million), and a
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 282,215,500 (2012: 281,040,562),
calculated as shown below. The Company does not have dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Issued shares at 1 January
Sale of own shares
Weighted-average number of shares for the period ended 31
December

2013
282,215,500
-

2012
279,763,273
1,277,289

282,215,500

281,040,562

Profit attributed to shareholders from continuing operations
(mln RUB)

1,910

4,074

Profit attributed to shareholders from discontinued operation
(mln RUB)
Profit attributed to shareholders (mln RUB)

6
1,916

236
4,310

6.77

14.50

0.02
6.79

0.84
15.34

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations (RUB)
Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued
operation (RUB)
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RUB)

11.

Employee benefit expenses
Mln RUB
Wages and salaries
Contributions to State pension fund

2013
14,488
3,530
18,018

2012
11,877
2,894
14,771
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12.

Income taxes
The Group’s applicable tax rate is the income tax rate of 20% for Russian companies (2012: 20%).

(a)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Mln RUB
Current tax expense
Current year
Adjustments of prior years tax

2013

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Total income tax expense
Mln RUB

2012
2,452
(4)
2,448

1,408
10
1,418

(1,160)
1,288
(3)
1,285

305
1,723
(4)
1,719

2013

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss (Note 12)
Current tax expense recognised in equity (Note 6)

2012
2,448
(328)
2,120

1,418
1,418

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
2013
Mln RUB
Profit before income tax from continuing
operations
Income tax at applicable tax rate
Non-deductible expenses
Non-taxable income
Adjustments of prior years tax
Tax on dividends
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions

3,541
708
606
(27)
(4)
20
(15)
1,288

2012
%

Mln RUB
100%
20%
17%
(1%)
0%
1%
(1%)
36%

5,811
1,162
614
(66)
10
3
1,723

%
100%
20%
11%
(1%)
0%
0%
0%
30%
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(b)

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Mln RUB

Assets
2013

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Construction contracts
(including due from and due to
customers)
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Other
Tax loss carry-forwards
Net tax assets/liabilities
Set off of tax
Tax assets/liabilities

(c)

Liabilities
2013
2012

2012

Net
2013

2012

1
34
315

1
8
103

(1,241)
(1)
(82)
(18)

(1,208)
(30)
(38)
(142)
-

(1,241)
(82)
34
297

(1,208)
(29)
(38)
(134)
103

713
8
177
64
335
17
1,664
(1,532)
132

209
8
136
44
87
13
609
(609)
-

(167)
(31)
(5)
(1,545)
1,532
(13)

(219)
(7)
(3)
(1,647)
609
(1,038)

546
8
146
59
335
17
119
119

(10)
8
129
41
87
13
(1,038)
(1,038)

Movement in deferred tax balances

Mln RUB

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Construction contracts
(including due from and due to
customers)
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Provisions
Other
Tax loss carry-forwards

1 January
2012

Recognised in
profit or
loss

Recognised in
other
comprehensive
income

Acquisition
through
business
combination

Discontinued
operation

31
December
2012

(1,327)
(2)
294
314

107
61
(30)
(432)
75

(4)
-

(10)
(90)
(2)
4

22
4
(290)

(1,208)
(29)
(38)
(134)
103

368
124
(109)
106
60
12
(160)

(230)
34
117
(41)
27
1
(311)

(4)

1
(2)
1
(98)

(149)
(27)
(25)
(465)

(10)
129
8
41
87
13
(1,038)
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Mln RUB
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Construction contracts (including due from
and due to customers)
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Provisions
Other
Tax loss carry-forwards

(d)

1 January
2013

Recognised in
profit or
loss

Recognised in
other
comprehensive
income

31
December
2013

(1,208)
(29)
(38)
(134)
103

(33)
29
(41)
168
194

(3)
-

(1,241)
(82)
34
297

(10)
129
8
41
87
13
(1,038)

556
17
18
248
4
1,160

(3)

546
146
8
59
335
17
119

Unrecognised deferred tax liabilities
At 31 December 2013 the temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
amounted to RUB 122 million (2012: RUB 673 million). They are expected to be reversed in the
foreseeable future through distribution of dividends to the Company. The deferred tax assets and
liabilities were not recognised as at 31 December 2013 since such dividends are taxed at 0% rate.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Mln RUB
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 January 2012
Additions
Acquisitions through business combinations
Disposals
Discontinued operation
Transfers
Balance at 31 December 2012
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Balance at 31 December 2013
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2012
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
Discontinued operation
Balance at 31 December 2012
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
Balance at 31 December 2013
Carrying amounts
Balance at 1 January 2012
Balance at 31 December 2012
Balance at 31 December 2013

Buildings and
structures

Machinery and
equipment

314
8
16
338
48
386

6,422
326
18
(463)
(174)
582
6,711
577
(168)
108
7,228

8,342
2,607
178
(332)
(81)
55
10,769
2,252
(127)
99
12,993

4,738
1,790
19
(222)
(134)
21
6,212
1,799
(196)
7,815

641
342
1
(219)
(130)
11
646
66
(130)
4
586

545
520
1
(31)
(669)
366
302
(7)
(211)
450

21,002
5,593
233
(1,236)
(550)
25,042
5,044
(628)
29,458

-

825
397
(75)
(33)
1,114
437
(83)
1,468

3,130
1,378
(181)
(27)
4,300
1,738
(97)
5,941

2,004
925
(122)
(30)
2,777
1,100
(135)
3,742

131
299
(206)
(53)
171
203
(57)
317

-

6,090
2,999
(584)
(143)
8,362
3,478
(372)
11,468

314
338
386

5,597
5,597
5,760

5,212
6,469
7,052

2,734
3,435
4,073

510
475
269

545
366
450

14,912
16,680
17,990

Land

Vehicles

Construction
in progress

Other

Total

20

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

In 2013 depreciation expense of RUB 3,273 million (2012: RUB 2,818 million) was charged to
cost of sales, RUB 205 million (2012: RUB 181 million) to administrative expenses.
(a)

Security
No material assets were pledged at 31 December 2013 and 2012 except for those received under
finance lease agreements.

(b)

Leased property, plant, and equipment
The Group leases production equipment under a number of finance lease agreements. Certain
leases provide the Group with the option to purchase the asset at a beneficial price at the end of the
lease terms. At 31 December 2013 the net book value of leased property, plant, and equipment was
RUB 7,731 million (2012: RUB 6,103 million). The leased property, plant, and equipment secure
lease obligations.
During 2013, the Group acquired equipment under finance lease of RUB 3,278 million
(2012: RUB 3,147 million).

14.

Equity-accounted investees
Mln RUB
Interest in joint venture
Interests in associates
Balance at at the end of the period

Note
(a)
(b)

31 December 2013
6,425
1,808
8,233

31 December 2012
6,458
1,600
8,058

None of the Group’s equity accounted investees are publicity listed entities and consequently do
not have published price quotations.
(a)

Joint venture
Acquisition of interest in a joint venture NWCC in 2012
On 25 December 2012 the Group obtained control over Plexy Limited (“Plexy”), a Cyprus based
company, by acquiring 100% of equity interest for a consideration of RUB 7,957 million, paid in
cash. Plexy owns a 50% interest in Vinci Concessions Russie SAS (“VCR”), a company
incorporated in France that owns 100% participation interest in North-West Concession Company
(“NWCC”), a limited liability company incorporated in Russia.
NWCC is an operator of the 15-58 km segment of the Moscow-Saint Petersburg Toll Highway,
under a concession service arrangement with the State Company Russian Highways. The remaining
50% stake in the joint venture is owned by Vinci, a global infrastructure construction and
concession management group.
The acquisition of Plexy by the Group effectively represents an acquisition of an interest in a joint
venture NWCC. Therefore, the transaction is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.
The allocation of the consideration paid to the net identifiable assets of Plexy (the parent company
for the equity accounted investee) and the fair value of the equity accounted investee (NWCC)
itself is presented below.
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Mln RUB
Consideration paid in cash
Transaction costs

2012
7,780
177
7,957
(7,013)
944

Fair value of net identifiable assets of subsidiary
Goodwill on acquisition

The fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were as follows:
Mln RUB
31 December 2012
Non-current assets
Investment in joint venture (NWCC)
Current assets

5,514

Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets, net
Net identifiable assets

997
502
7,013

The fair value of the investment in the joint venture, which has been accounted for as an equity
accounted investee, has been determined by estimating the fair values of the subsidiary’s interest in
the assets and liabilities of the joint venture on the date of acquisition.
The major asset of the equity accounted investee is the concession agreement, an identifiable
amortizable intangible asset with carrying value of RUB 24,278 million as at 31 December 2013.
The goodwill on acquisi tion is included in the carrying value of the investment in the joint venture.
The following table summarises the financial information of NWCC as included in its own
financial statements, adjusted for fair value adjustments at acquisition and differences in
accounting policies. The table also reconciles the summarised financial information to the carrying
amount of the Group’s interest in NWCC.
OОO "NWCC"
Mln RUB
Percentage ownership interest
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net assets (100 %)
Group’s share of net assets (50 %)
Goodwill
Carrying amount of equity-accounted investment

31 December 2013
50%
24,865
5,167
(12,584)
(6,487)
10,961
5,481
944
6,425

31 December 2012
50%
20,942
8,405
(12,578)
(5,742)
11,027
5,514
944
6,458

2013

2012

Revenue
Profit and total comprehensive income (100 %)

8,953

-

(66)

-

Profit and total comprehensive income (50 %)

(33)
(33)

-

Group’s share of profit and total comprehensive income
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(b)

Impairment testing
At 31 December 2013 the carrying amount of the Group’s investment in the joint-venture NWCC
was RUB 6,425 million, including the related goodwill of RUR 944 million. The major asset of
NWCC is the concession agreement, an identifiable amortizable intangible asset with the carrying
value of RUB 24,278 million as at the reporting date. NWCC is in the process of constructing the
15-58 km section of the Moscow-Sankt-Petersburg motorway (“Project”) in accordance with the
construction schedule and therefore is capitalising the costs of the construction of the intangible
asset. The intangible asset will be amortized over the life of the concession agreement (till 2041),
commencing the date when the construction is completed.
At the end of 2013 the indicators of future traffic flows used in the financial model supporting the
concession arrangement were decreased. The Group concluded that such decrease represents an
indication that its investment in the equity accounted investee might be impaired. Therefore, the
Group carried out an impairment test with respect to its investment.
The recoverable amount of the investment in the joint venture (“CGU”) was estimated based on the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU over the life of the
concession agreement (value in use). The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated to be
higher than its carrying amount and no provision for impairment was recognised as at
31 December 2013. The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set
out below. The values assigned to the key assumptions represented management’s assessment of
future trends in the relevant industries and were based on historical data from both external and
internal sources.
Discount rate

12.52%

Traffic revenue (average annual) growth rate

6.1%

Budgeted EBITDA (average annual) growth rate

7.4%

The discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average
weighted-average cost of capital, with a possible debt leveraging of 66,5% at a market interest rate
of 10,89%.
The Group engaged an independent traffic advisor specialized in development of transportation
models and forecast of traffic to make traffic growth projections and revenue forecast for the
Project. The traffic revenue forecast was adjusted to take into account inflation over the period of
the concession agreement.
Budgeted EBITDA was estimated taking into account past experience of forecasting the costs of
constructing and operating such an asset as well as the projected traffic revenue.
The cash flow projections included specific estimates for the period through the end of the
concession agreement due to the fact that the traffic and revenue projections covered the periods
through the end of the concession agreement.
The estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount by approximately
RUB 2,719 million. Management has identified that a reasonably possible change in two key
assumptions could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount. The following
table shows the amount by which these two assumptions would need to change individually for the
estimated recoverable amount to be equal to the carrying amount.
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In percent
Rate required for
carrying amount to
equal recoverable
amount
13,99%

Discount rate

(c)

Associate
The following table summarises the financial information of associate as included in its own
financial statements, adjusted for fair value adjustments at acquisition and differences in
accounting policies. The table also reconciles the summarised financial information to the carrying
amount of the Group’s interest in this company.
Mln RUB
Percentage ownership interest
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net assets (100%)
Group’s share of net assets (25.002%)
Goodwill
Carrying amount of interest in associates

OAO Mostostroy 11
31 December 2013
31 December 2012
25.002%
25.002%
5,955
5,384
10,336
6,345
(4,351)
(2,370)
(5,372)
(3,623)
6,568
5,736
1,642
1,434
166
166
1,808
1,600
2013

Revenue
Profit and total comprehensive income (100%)
Profit and total comprehensive income (25.002%)
Group’s share of profit and total comprehensive income
Dividends received by the Group

15.

2012
14,858
1,047
262
262

11,161
718
180
180

54

33

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Other assets
Mln RUB
Loans given
Available-for-sale investments
Bank deposits with maturities more than 3 months
Other investments

769
234
23
7
1,033

839
220
79
7
1,145

Non-current
Current

273
760
1,033

250
895
1,145

Available-for-sale investments comprise equity instruments of financial institutions that are mainly
listed either on the MICEX stock exchanges. The fair value of available-for-sale equity investments
was determined by reference to their quoted market prices.
The Group’s exposure to credit, currency and interest rate risks related to other assets is disclosed
in note 24.
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16.

Inventories
Mln RUB

31 December 2013

Construction materials
Work in progress

31 December 2012

7,684
391
8,075

7,914
207
8,121

31 December 2013
170,438
10,839
181,277
(158,570)
(458)
22,249

31 December 2012
216,132
13,658
229,790
(197,298)
(138)
32,354

Contract revenue accumulated to the period end
Progress payments and advances received
Net payables to customers of group held for sale
Net payables to customers

181,277
(232,020)
(50,743)

229,790
(266,039)
7,723
(28,526)

Due from customers
Due to customers

14,304
(65,047)
(50,743)

8,248
(36,774)
(28,526)

3,238
2,957
6,195

3,486
3,486

No inventories were pledged at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

17.

Construction contracts in progress
Mln RUB
Progress billings
Unbilled revenue
Contract revenue accumulated to the period end
Contract costs accumulated to the period end
Expected losses recognised accumulated to the period end
Recognised profits less recognised losses

Non-current retentions
Current retentions

The retentions on construction contracts are amounts of progress billings that are not paid until the
satisfaction of conditions specified in the contract for the payment of such amounts or until defects
have been rectified. The retentions are measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable
based on the expected timing of cash inflows.

18.

Trade and other receivables
Mln RUB
Trade receivables
Value added tax
Security deposits for participation in tenders
Taxes other than income tax
Other receivables
Non-current
Current

31 December 2013
2,337
12,288
343
5
342
15,315
658
14,657
15,315

31 December 2012
1,312
8,293
168
7
648
10,428
293
10,135
10,428
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The Group’s exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are
disclosed in note 24(c)(ii).

19.

Cash and cash equivalents
Mln RUB

31 December 2013

Petty cash
Cash at banks
Bank deposits with maturities less than 3 months

2
963
25,601
26,566

31 December 2012
1
1,576
7,287
8,864

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at
31 December:
Mln RUB

31 December 2013

Petty cash and cash at banks
Bank deposits with maturities less than 3 months
Cash at banks and bank deposits with maturities less than 3
months attributable to
discontinued operation (Note 6)

31 December 2012

965
25,601

1,577
7,287

26,566

1,790
10,654

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and
liabilities are disclosed in note 24.

20.

Capital and reserves

(a)

Share capital

Authorised shares
Par value

Ordinary shares
2013
2012
282,215,500
282,215,500
0.14 RUB
0.14 RUB

On issue at 1 January
Sold for cash
On issue at end of period, fully paid

282,215,500
282,215,500

279,763,273
2,452,227
282,215,500

Ordinary shares
All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and
are entitled to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings. In respect of the Company’s shares that
are held by the Group, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.
The share capital of RUB 35 million was formed prior to 31 December 2002 when the Russian
economy was considered to be hyperinflationary for IFRS purposes. Therefore the share capital
was adjusted for the effect of hyperinflation by RUB 96 million as at 31 December 2002. As a
result, the carrying value of the share capital amounted to RUB 131 million since that date until the
issue of additional shares in 2010.
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(b)

Reserve for acquisition of own shares
The reserve for acquisition of the Company’s own shares represents the cost of the Company’s
shares held by the Group. At the reporting date the Company held none of its own shares.
During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Company re-sold 2,452,227 treasury shares for cash
consideration of RUB 418 million . The difference of RUB 143 million between the consideration
received and the acquisition cost of the treasury shares sold was recorded in the additional paid-in
capital.

(c)

Dividends
In accordance with Russian legislation the Company’s distributable reserves are limited to the
balance of retained earnings as recorded in the Company’s statutory financial statements prepared
in accordance with Russian Accounting Principles.
Dividends in the amount of RUB 2,201 million, or RUB 7.8 per share were accrued and paid
during the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RUB 2,004 million, or RUB 7.10 per share).

(d)

Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets until the investments are derecognised or impaired.

21.

Capital management
The Group has no formal policy for capital management but management seeks to maintain a
sufficient capital base for meeting the Group’s operational and strategic needs, and to maintain
confidence of market participants. This is achieved with efficient cash management, constant
monitoring of Group’s revenues and profit, and long-term investment plans mainly financed by the
Group’s operating cash flows. With these measures the Group aims for steady profits growth.

22.

Loans and borrowings
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s interest-bearing loans
and borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost. For more information about the Group’s
exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risk, see note 24.
Mln RUB
Current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Total loans and borrowings

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

13
2,173
2,186

5,193
1,577
6,770

2,352
4,538

1,892
8,662

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:
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Mln RUB
31 December 2012
Less than one year
Between 1 and 5 years

Future minimum lease
payments

31 December 2013
Less than one year
Between 1 and 5 years

Present value of
minimum lease
payments

Interest

1,979
2,144
4,123

402
252
654

1,577
1,892
3,469

2,642
2,642
5,284

469
290
759

2,173
2,352
4,525

The carrying amounts of all of the Group’s loans and borrowings are denominated in RUB.
The bank loans are attracted in RUB under fixed interest rates. The weighted-average effective
interest rates for the reporting period were as follows:
2013
Bank loans
Finance lease liabilities

2012
8.9%
14.7%

9.1%
16.2%

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the leased assets, see Note 13.

23.

Trade and other payables
Mln RUB
Trade payables
Value added taх payable
Payables to personnel
Taxes payable other than income tax and value added tax
Other payables and accrued expenses

8,162
11,145
1,971
559
447
22,284

8,730
4,890
1,512
502
279
15,913

Long-term
Short-term

792
21,492
22,284

213
15,700
15,913

The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade and other payables is
disclosed in note 24(c)(iii).

24.

Fair values and risk management

(a)

Accounting classifications and fair values
Financial assets and liabilities are classified by measurement categories as at 31 December 2013 as
follows:
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Loans and
receivables

Available for sale
(level 1)

Other financial
liabilities

-

234
234

-

234
234

799
26,566
15,315
42,680

-

-

799
26,566
15,315
42,680

-

-

13
4,525
22,284
26,822

13
4,525
22,284
26,822

Financial assets measured at
fair value
Other assets
Financial assets not measured
at fair value
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Unsecured bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Trade payables

Total

Financial assets and liabilities are classified by measurement categories as at 31 December 2012 as
follows:
Loans and
receivables
Financial assets measured at
fair value
Other assets
Financial assets not measured
at fair value
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Unsecured bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Trade payables

(b)

Available for sale
(level 1)

Other financial
liabilities

-

220
220

-

220
220

925

-

-

925

8,864
10,428
20,217

-

-

8,864
10,428
20,217

-

-

5,193
3,469
15,913
24,575

5,193
3,469
15,913
24,575

Total

Measurement of fair values
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting dates were not significantly
different from their carrying amounts. The basis for determining fair values is disclosed in note 4.
Inputs for the valuation of the available-for-sale financial assets are primarily based on the
observable market data (hierarchy level 1).

(c)

Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
29

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

(i)

•

credit risk (see 24(c)(ii));

•

liquidity risk (see 24(c)(iii));

•

market risk (see 24(c)(iv)).

Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s risk management framework. The management is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The management reports regularly to the Board
of Directors on its activities.
The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.
The Group’s Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group’s Audit Committee is assisted in
its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit
Committee.

(ii)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s
receivables from customers and investments in securities.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.
Trade and other receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The concentration of credit risk geographically or with respect to sales transactions with
a single customer is disclosed in Note 5.
In monitoring customer credit risk, the Group’s ultimate customers are typically divided into the
following broad categories:
•

Federal State agencies. This category consists of agencies of the Russian Ministry of Transport,
primarily the federal highway agency, Rosavtodor, the federal railway agency, Roszheldor, and
the federal marine and river transport agency, Rosmorrechflot.

•

State, State-owned and State-funded corporations. This category consists of State-owned
corporations, primarily Russian Railways, as well as Russian Highways.

•

Regional authorities. This category consists of local governments such as the Moscow city
government, and local government entities or authorities such as the State authority for
highways at the administration of the Nizhniy Novgorod region.

•

Municipal authorities. This category consists of municipal authorities, such as the
administration of Nizhniy Novgorod.
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•

Private customers, including ‘‘public private partnership’’ concessionaires. This category
consists of private construction companies and concessionaires for ‘‘public private
partnerships’’ (PPP), such as OOO North-West Concession Company.

The Group’s contracts usually require an annual advance payment from its customers of up to 30
percent of the anticipated annual work amount. The Group typically uses this amount to finance
some of its raw materials, fuel and labour costs. However, the Group is typically required to
provide its customers with a bank guarantee covering the refund of this amount if the Group fails to
perform its contractual obligations. Most of the Group’s construction contracts provide for monthly
progress payments in arrears based on a schedule of works performed during that month.
The Group issues its invoices to customers in accordance with terms specified in the relevant
contract, which generally require payment within one to 30 days after the invoice date. To ensure
the timely collection of its account receivables and to minimise the incurrence of bad debts, the
Group has implemented management controls and established collection monitoring and
investigation procedures to manage its accounts receivable and work-in-progress. It regularly
monitors the status of accounts receivable and work-in-progress and actively seeks to manage the
risk of non-payment or late payment primarily by maintaining close customer contacts.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of trade and other receivables and investments. The only component of this allowance is a
specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures.
The two most significant customers of the Group account for RUB 7,749 million of the trade
receivables’ carrying amount (including amounts due from customers on construction contracts) at
31 December 2013 (in 2012: two customers with the amount of RUB 5,309 million).
Impairment losses
The ageing of trade and other receivables and amounts due from customers on construction
contracts at the reporting date was as follows:
Mln RUB

Trade and other receivables
Not past due
Past due 0-183 days
Past due more than 183 days
Amounts due from customers
on construction contracts
Not past due

Gross
31 December
2013

Impairment
31 December
2013

Gross
31 December
2012

Impairment
31 December
2012

2,800
41
1,752

(1)
(1,570)

2,087
191
458

(184)
(424)

14,485
19,078

(181)
(1,752)

8,402
11,138

(154)
(762)

As at 31 December 2013 the allowance for doubtful prepayments amounted to RUB 1,281 million
(2012: RUB 256 million).
Based on historic default rates, the Group believes that, apart from the above, no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables not past due or past due by up to 183 days;
the main portion of the trade receivables balance relates to customers that have a good track record
with the Group.
The allowance accounts in respect of trade receivables are used to record impairment losses unless
the Group is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amounts
are considered irrecoverable and are written off against the financial asset directly.

31

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

At 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Group did not have any collective impairment on its trade
receivables.
In addition, the majority of the balance of construction in progress due from customers (Note 17) is
from government agencies and other public bodies, therefore, there is a concentration of credit risk
with such type of customers.
Based on the Group’s monitoring of customer credit risk, the Group believes that, except as
indicated above, no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables and other
receivables and amounts due from customers on construction contracts not past due.
Investments
The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in liquid securities. Management
actively monitors credit ratings and given that the Group only has invested in securities with high
credit ratings, management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
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Cash and cash equivalents
The Group held cash and cash equivalents of RUB 26,566 million at 31 December 2013 (2012:
RUB 10,654 million), which represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets. The cash and
cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated BB- to
BBB, based on rating agency Fitch and Standard & Poor’s ratings.
Guarantees
The Group considers that financial guarantee contracts entered into by the Group to guarantee the
indebtedness of other parties are insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this
respect, the Group treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it
becomes probable that the Group will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.
The financial guarantees provided to third parties and outstanding as at 31 December 2013
amounted to RUB 22 million (2012: RUB 322 million).
(iii)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.
As at 31 December 2013 the Group’s total current liabilities exceeded total current assets by
RUB 8.0 billion. The Group maintains a number of credit lines with a number of major Russian
banks to meet requirements for short-term finance. The undrawn credit facilities at 31 December
2013 amounted to RUB 50.4 billion and are available to the Group the term of 1-3 years.
Management believes that current agreements with banks are sufficient to maintain appropriate
liquidity in the foreseeable future.
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.
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31 December 2013

Mln RUB
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Trade payables
Non-controlling interests

Carrying
amount

13
4,525
8,162
355
13,055

Contractual
cash flows

13
5,284
8,192
355
13,844

0-6 mth

13
1,397
7,225
355
8,990

6-12 mth

1,245
322
1,567

1-2 yrs

1,630
28
1,658

2-3 yrs

over 3 yrs

836
58
894

176
559
735

31 December 2012

Mln RUB
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans
Finance lease liabilities
Trade payables
Non-controlling interests

Carrying
amount

5,193
3,469
8,730
1,367
18,759

Contractual
cash flows

5,497
4,123
8,811
1,367
19,798

0-6 mth

251
1,038
8,074
1,367
10,730

6-12 mth

5,246
941
589
6,776

1-2 yrs

1,468
10
1,478

2-3 yrs

over 3 yrs

540
22
562

136
116
252
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(iv)

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Currency risk
The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign currency risk.

(v)

Interest rate risk
Changes in interest rates impact primarily loans and borrowings by changing either their fair value
(fixed rate debt) or their future cash flows (variable rate debt). Management does not have a formal
policy of determining how much of the Group’s exposure should be fixed or variable rates.
However, at the time of raising new loans or borrowings management uses its judgment to decide
whether it believes that a fixed or variable rate would be more favourable to the Group over the
expected period until maturity.
Exposure to interest rate risk
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments
was as follows:
Mln RUB
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

Carrying amount
31 December 2013
31 December 2012

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets

213
(4,538)
(4,325)

411
(8,662)
(8,251)

579

507

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial instruments as fair value through profit or
loss or as available-for-sale. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not
have an effect in profit or loss or in equity.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have no material impact
on equity and profit or loss of the Group.
(vi)

Other market price risk
Management of the Group monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its investment portfolio
based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual
basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the management. The primary goal of the
Group’s investment strategy is to maximise investment returns.
The Group does not enter into commodity contracts other than to meet the Group’s expected usage
and sale requirements; such contracts are not settled net.
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Sensitivity analysis – equity price risk
The majority of the Group’s equity investments are listed either on MICEX stock exchanges. For
such investments, classified as instruments available-for-sale, an increase of the MICEX index by
5% at the reporting date, would lead to an increase in shareholders’ equity of RUB 12 million after
tax (2012: increase by RUB 16 million); similar reduction in these indices would lead to a decrease
in shareholders’ equity of RUB 12 million after tax (2012: decrease of RUB 16 million). The
determined sensitivity in the fair value reflects each equity instrument’s sensitivity to the related
market index.

25.

Significant subsidiaries
Ownership interest
Subsidiary
OOO "Transstroymechanizatsiya"
ООО "Taganka M ost"
ООО "United Toll Systems"
ZАО "M ostotrest-Service"
Plexy Limited

26.
(a)

Country of
incorporation
Russia
Russia
Russia
Russia
Cyprus

31 December 2013
84%
100%
84.3%
60%
100%

31 December 2012
50.1%
100%
84.3%
60%
100%

Acquisition of subsidiary
Acquisition of road maintenance and repair company Mostotrest-Service in 2012
On 7 July 2012 the Group obtained control of CJSC “ZAO Natsionalnaya Industrialno-Torgovaya
Palata” (“NITP”), a servicing company specialized in maintenance and repair, including road
markings and general overhaul of roads and bridges, by acquiring 60% of equity interest for a
consideration of RUB 513 million, paid in cash. NITP was renamed to Mostotrest-Service on
25 July 2013.
From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2012 Mostotrest-Service (former NITP) contributed
revenue of RUB 2,142 million and profit of RUB 45 million to the Group’s total revenue and total
profit.
If all acquisitions of businesses had occurred on 1 January 2012, management estimates that
consolidated revenue would have been RUB 2,984 million, and consolidated profit for the year
would not have changed significantly. In determining these amounts, management has assumed
that the fair value adjustments that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the same if the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2012.
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Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The Mostotrest-Service’s identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were as follows:

Mln RUB

Note

Recognised fair
values on
acquisition

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

13

233

Intangible assets
Other non-current assets

451
126

Current assets
Prepayments, trade and other receivables

738

Cash and cash equivalents

81

Other current assets

18

Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Other non-current liabilities

(28)
(131)

Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

(14)
(885)
589

Goodwill
Goodwill has been recognized as a result of the acquisition as follows:
Mln RUB
Total consideration paid in cash
Less Group's share in the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree
Goodwill

2012
513
(353)
160

Goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be achieved from integration of the
acquired company into the Group’s business. There were no impairment of goodwill from the date
of acquisition of the subsidiary till the reporting date.

27.
(a)

Acquisition of non-controlling interest
Acquisition of additional non-controlling interests in UTS in 2012
On 9 November 2012 the Group acquired an additional 33.3% equity interest in UTS for
RUB 242 million, increasing its ownership interest from 51% to 84.3%. The carrying value of the
UTS’s net assets as at the date of the transaction was RUB 45 million. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests by RUB 15 million. The difference between the carrying value
of the acquired non-controlling interest and the consideration paid amounting to RUB 227 million
was recorded in the equity, being transaction with owners.

(b)

Acquisition of additional non-controlling interests in TSM in 2013
On 31 January 2013 the Group increased it’s ownership interest in TSM from 50,1% to 76% (see
Note 27).
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On 29 October 2013 the Group acquired an additional 8% interest in TSM for RUB 225 million,
increasing its ownership interest from 76% to 84%. The carrying value of the TSM’s net assets as
at the date of the transaction was RUB 3,877 million. The Group recognised a decrease in noncontrolling interests by RUB 310 million. The difference between the carrying value of the
acquired non-controlling interest and the consideration paid amounting to RUB 85 million was
recorded in the equity, being transaction with owners.

28.

Operating leases
At 31 December, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases were payable as
follows.
Mln RUB
Less than one year
From one to five years
More than five years

31 December 2013
290
414
1,526
2,230

31 December 2012
171
324
1,037
1,532

The Group leases a number of land plots, warehouses and production equipment under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 5 to 49 years for land plots, one to two years
for production equipment and other property, with an option to renew the lease after that date.
Lease payments are usually increased annually to reflect market rentals.
Since the title to land plots and other property does not pass to the Group, the lease payments are
regularly revised based on the market rates, and the Group does not have an interest in the residual
value of the leased property, all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these assets
remain with the lessor. As such, the Group classifies these leases as operating leases.
During the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group recognised RUB 538 million operating lease
expenses in the profit or loss (2012: RUB 625 million).

29.

Commitments
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Group did not have significant contractual obligations to
purchase property, plant and equipment.

30.

Contingencies

(a)

Insurance
The insurance industry in the Russian Federation is in a developing state and many forms of
insurance protection common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available. The Group
does not have full coverage for its plant facilities, business interruption, or third party liability in
respect of property or environmental damage arising from accidents on Group property or relating
to Group operations. Until the Group obtains adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the
loss or destruction of certain assets could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s operations
and financial position.
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The Group has to comply with the Law on Urban Planning, including for causing injury to life,
health or property of third parties as a result of conducting construction works or defects in
construction, renovation, overhaul of capital construction assets. The Group will also be held
responsible for accidental loss of or damage to property being constructed. In order to reduce the
risk of losses and obligations to third parties as a consequence of conducting construction works,
the Group has obtained full insurance coverage against civil liabilities arising under the
construction contracts in accordance with the terms of these contracts.
(b)

Litigation
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Group was not engaged in litigations, the outcome of which
might have material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

(c)

Warranties
The Group has certain warranty obligations under construction contracts terms which range from
one to twenty years. The Group performed analysis of historical data on actual compensations paid
and defects rectified under these warranties for the past seven years. Based on this analysis, the
Group concluded that the probability of the constructions works carried out during the reporting
period will not satisfy the quality conditions specified in the contract and require repair, is low.
Therefore the Group did not recognize a warranty liability on construction contracts as at the
reporting date.
The retentions held by customers under the construction contracts are usually returned in full.

(d)

Taxation contingencies
The taxation system in the Russian Federation continues to evolve and is characterised by frequent
changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are sometimes
contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities.
Taxes are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities, which have the authority
to impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. A tax year generally remains open for review
by the tax authorities during the three subsequent calendar years; however, under certain
circumstances a tax year may remain open longer. Recent events within the Russian Federation
suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more assertive and substance-based position in their
interpretation and enforcement of tax legislation.
New transfer pricing legislation enacted in the Russian Federation starting from 1 January 2012
provides for major modifications making local transfer pricing rules closer to OECD guidelines,
but creating additional uncertainty in practical application of tax legislation in certain
circumstances.
The new transfer pricing rules introduce an obligation for the taxpayers to prepare transfer pricing
documentation with respect to controlled transactions and prescribe new basis and mechanisms for
accruing additional taxes and interest in case prices in the controlled transactions differ from the
market level. The new transfer pricing rules eliminated the 20-percent price safe harbour that
existed under the previous transfer pricing rules applicable to transactions on or prior to 31
December 2011.
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The new transfer pricing rules primarily apply to cross-border transactions between related parties,
as well as to certain cross-border transactions between independent parties, as determined under the
Russian Tax Code. In addition, the rules apply to in-country transactions between related parties if
the accumulated annual volume of the transactions between the same parties exceeds a particular
threshold (RUB 3 billion in 2012, RUB 2 billion in 2013, and RUB 1 billion in 2014 and thereon).
Since there is no practice of applying the new transfer pricing rules by the tax authorities and
courts, it is difficult to predict the effect of the new transfer pricing rules on these consolidated
financial statements.
These circumstances may create tax risks in the Russian Federation that are substantially more
significant than in other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax
liabilities based on its interpretations of applicable Russian tax legislation, official pronouncements
and court decisions. However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the
effect on these consolidated financial statements, if the authorities were successful in enforcing
their interpretations, could be significant.

31.

Related party transactions

(a)

Control relationships
As at 31 December 2013 the Mostotrest’s shareholders structure was as follows:
•

38.6% - Marc O’Polo Investments

•

26.8% - OAO TFK Finans

•

34.6% - free-float.

(b)

Transactions with key management personnel

(i)

Management remuneration
During 2013 key management received remuneration in the amount of RUB 586 million
(2012: RUB 519 million) that is included in personnel costs.
During the reporting period there were no other material transactions conducted with key
management personnel and their close family members.

(c)

Transactions with other related parties
The Group’s other related party transactions are disclosed below.

40

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

(i)

Sales
Mln RUB

Transaction value
2013

Sale of goods to:
Investments in equity accounted investees
Other related parties
Services rendered to:
Investments in equity accounted investees
Other related parties
Discontinued operation

(ii)

Outstanding balance

2012

2013

2012

12
-

53
8

11

55
136

10,609
51
42
10,714

16
145
2,249
2,471

(925)
12
(902)

(1,440)
113
429
(707)

Purchases
Mln RUB

Transaction value
2013

Purchase of goods from:
Investments in equity accounted investees
Other related parties
Services received from:
Investments in equity accounted investees
Other related parties
Discontinued operation

Outstanding balance

2012

2013

2012

102

838

7

(4)
(13)

628
771
346
1,847

461
676
13,120
15,095

(1,599)
156
(1,436)

(83)
(41)
(471)
(612)

Purchases of goods and services from related parties mainly consist of purchases from companies
related to shareholders of the Group and minority participants of the subsidiaries.
(iii)

Loans
Mln RUB

Transaction value
2013

Loans given to:
Investments in equity accounted investees
Other related parties

Outstanding balance

2012
-

2013
30
30

2012
584
584

507
507

The loan to equity accounted investee was recognized in 2012 as a result of the acquisition of Plexy
(see note 15). The loan was initially granted in order to enable the equity accounted investee to
meet its cash flow needs. The loan is renewable at each expiry date for further period of one year,
unless it is cancelled by any of the parties concerned. The loan bear interest which is equal to the
maximum rate that may be deducted for tax purposes in France as published by the “Journal
Officer” during the last month of each calendar quarter. The interest is calculated on the daily
balances and it is capitalized quarterly. During the year ended 31 December 2013 the quarterly
interest rates published by the “Journal Officer” fluctuated between 2.81% and 2.82% (2012:
between 3.01% and 4.01%).
Interest income on these loans for 2013 amounted to RUB 15 million (2012: RUB 0 million).
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Mln RUB

Outstanding balance

Transaction value
2013

Loans received from:
Other related parties

2012
-

2013

5,713
5,713

2012
3
3

3
3

The loans received from the related parties bear interest at 8.5% per annum. Interest expense on
these loans for 2013 amounted to RUB 65 million (2012: RUB 55 million).
(iv)

Acquisition of Plexy Ltd.
On 25 December 2012 the Group acquired 100% of equity interest in Plexy Ltd., which owns a
50% participation interest in NWCC, for cash consideration of RUB 7 957 million (refer to
note 14). The equity interest was purchased from Perceive Holding Ltd and Octacore Holding Ltd,
controlled by beneficial owners of Marc O’Polo. The transaction was approved by the disinterested
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general shareholders’ meeting on
14 December 2012.

32.

Events subsequent to the reporting date
No significant events occurred after the reporting date.

33.

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except:

34.

•

items of property, plant and equipment are stated at their fair values as at the date of the firsttime adoption of IFRSs on 1 January 2008;

•

financial investments classified as available-for-sale are stated at fair value;

•

equity items in existence at 31 December 2002 include adjustments for the effects of
hyperinflation, which were calculated using conversion factors derived from the Russian
Federation Consumer Price Index published by the Russian Statistics Agency, GosKomStat.
Russia ceased to be hyperinflationary for IFRS purposes as at 1 January 2003.

Changes in accounting policies
Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in
Note 35 to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.
The Group has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any
consequential amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2013.
a. IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (2011)
b. IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
c. IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
d. IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
e. Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to IAS 1)
The nature and effects of the changes are explained below.
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(a)

Subsidiaries
As a result of IFRS 10 (2011), the Group has changed its accounting policy for determining
whether it has control over and consequently whether it consolidates its investees. IFRS 10 (2011)
introduces a new control model that focuses on whether the Group has power over an investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and ability to use its
power to affect those returns.
In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 10 (2011), the Group reassessed the control
conclusion for its investees at 1 January 2013. As a consequence, the Group has not changed its
control conclusion in respect of its investments.

(b)

Joint arrangements
As a result of IFRS 11, the Group has changed its accounting policy for its interests in joint
arrangements. Under IFRS 11, the Group has classified its interests in joint arrangements as either
joint operations (if the Group has rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
an arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group has rights only to the net assets of an arrangement).
When making this assessment, the Group considered the structure of the arrangements, the legal
form of any separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and
circumstances. Previously, the structure of the arrangement was the sole focus of classification.
The Group has re-evaluated its involvement in its only joint arrangement and has reclassified the
investment from a jointly controlled entity to a joint venture. Notwithstanding the reclassification,
the investment continues to be recognised by applying the equity method and there has been no
impact on the recognised assets, liabilities and comprehensive income of the Group.

(c)

Fair value measurement
IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair
value measurements when such measurements are required or permitted by other IFRSs. It unifies
the definition of fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It replaces
and expands the disclosure requirements about fair value measurements in other IFRSs, including
IFRS 7. As a result, the Group has included additional disclosures in this regard (see notes 6
and 24).
In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has applied the new fair value
measurement guidance prospectively and has not provided any comparative information for new
disclosures. Notwithstanding the above, the change had no significant impact on the measurements
of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

(d)

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
As a result of the amendments to IAS 1, the Group has modified the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income in its statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, to present
separately items that would be reclassified to profit or loss from those that would never be.
Comparative information has been re-presented accordingly.

35.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.
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(a)

Basis of consolidation

(i)

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date,
which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group (see note 35(a)(iii)).
The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
•

The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

•

The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

•

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity
interest in the acquire; less

•

The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the
Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for
within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.
(ii)

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.
Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions.

(iii)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary
to align them with the policies adopted by the Group. Losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the
non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.
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(iv)

Loss of control
Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any
non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus
or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any
interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that
control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an availablefor-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

(v)

Interests in equity-accounted investees
The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and a joint
venture.
Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity. A joint venture is an
arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of
the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.
Interests in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method and are
recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.
The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting
policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence or joint control
commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases.
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying
amount of that interest including any long-term investments, is reduced to zero, and the recognition
of further losses is discontinued, except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the investee.

(vi)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equityaccounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(b)

Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:
•

represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;

•

is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations; or

•

is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier.
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When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of
comprehensive income is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of
the comparative period.
(c)

Revenue

(i)

Construction contracts
Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in an
inflow of economic benefits and can be measured reliably. As soon as the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss in
proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. Contract expenses are recognised as incurred
unless they create an asset related to future contract activity.
The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the share of the costs incurred to date in the
total estimated contract costs.
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(ii)

General contractor services
For certain operations the Group undertakes to perform general contractor services. In this type of
contracts being the general contractor, the Group acts as a principal, and, therefore, recognizes
revenue from ultimate customer and the related cost incurred from the subcontractors on gross
basis.

(iii)

Services rendered
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of
work performed.

(iv)

Commissions
When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in a transaction, the
revenue recognised is the net amount of commission made by the Group.

(v)

Other revenue
Revenue from other activities is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
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(d)

Finance income and costs
The Group’s finance income and finance costs include:
•

interest income;

•

interest expense;

•

dividend income;

•

the net gain or loss on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets;

•

the foreign currency gain or loss on financial assets and financial liabilities;

•

impairment losses recognised on financial assets (other than trade receivables); and

•

non-controlling interest clasfied as a debt instrument.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established.
(e)

Foreign currency

(i)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or
loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the
beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences arising in translation are recognised in profit or loss, except for
differences arising on the translation of available-for-sale equity instruments which are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

(f)

Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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(ii)

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans, including Russia’s
State pension fund, are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods
during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a
defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

(iii)

Other long-term employee benefits
The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension plans is
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any
related assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are
denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The calculation is
performed using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

(g)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

(i)

Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising
from dividends.

(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:
•

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

•

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

•

taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. A deferred tax
asset is recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

48

OJSC MOSTOTREST
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2013

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.
In accordance with the tax legislation of the Russian Federation, tax losses and current tax assets of
a company in the Group may not be set off against taxable profits and current tax liabilities of other
Group companies. In addition, the tax base is determined separately for each of the Group’s main
activities and, therefore, tax losses and taxable profits related to different activities cannot be offset.
In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Group takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes, penalties and late-payment interest may be
due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based
on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This
assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future
events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact the tax
expense in the period that such a determination is made.
(h)

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
based on the weighted-average method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(i)

Assets held for sale or distribution
Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be
recovered primarily through sale or distribution rather than through continuing use, are classified as
held for sale or distribution.
Such assets, or disposal group, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill,
and then to the remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to
inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets or employee benefit assets, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial
classification as held for sale or distribution and subsequent gains or losses on remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment once classified as held for sale or distribution
are not amortised or depreciated. In addition, equity accounting of equity-accounted investees
ceases once classified as held for sale or distribution.
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(j)

Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of certain items of property, plant and equipment at 1
January 2008, the Group’s date of transition to IFRSs, was determined by reference to its fair value
at that date.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and
capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
and is recognised net within other income/other expenses in profit or loss.

(ii)

Subsequent expenditure
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant
and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii)

Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date when they are installed and
are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date when the asset is
completed and ready for use. Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its estimated residual
value.
Depreciation is generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.
Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is
reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not
depreciated.
The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:
•

buildings and structures

17 years;

•

machinery and equipment

7 years;

•

vehicles

7 years;

•

other PPE

3 years.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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(k)

Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

(ii)

Construction contracts asset
The construction contracts asset represents an intangible asset identified as part of purchase price
allocation to assets and liabilities of the acquiree in a business combination. The construction
contracts asset is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition, and subsequently accounted for
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The construction contracts asset is amortized during the period of execution of the contract.

(iii)

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(iv)

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

(v)

Amortisation
Amortisation is based on the cost of the asset less its estimated residual value.
Amortisation is generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use
since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as
follows:
•

construction contracts

1.5 years;

•

software

3-5 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.
(l)

Amounts due from/ to customers on construction contracts
Amounts due from customers on construction contracts represent the amount of construction
contracts in progress less consideration received by the Group for works already performed.
Amounts due from customers are presented separately in the statement of financial position for all
contracts in which costs incurred plus recognised profits and losses exceeds consideration received.
If the consideration received for works performed to date exceeds costs incurred plus recognised
profits and losses, then the difference is presented as Due to customers on construction contracts in
the statement of financial position.
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Construction contracts in progress represent the gross amount expected to be collected from
customers for contract work performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognised to date
(see note 35(c)(i)) less recognised losses. Cost includes all expenditure related directly to specific
projects and an allocation of fixed and variable overheads incurred in the Group’s contract
activities based on normal operating capacity.
(m)

Financial instruments
The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category.

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities – recognition and derecognition
The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and debt securities issued on the date that they
are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade
date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are a category of financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see
note 35(n)(i)).
Loans and receivables category comprise the following classes of financial assets: trade and other
receivables as presented in note 18 and cash and cash equivalents as presented in note 19.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in their fair value.
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the above categories of financial assets. Such assets
are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment
losses (see note 35(n)(i)) and foreign currency differences on available-for-sale debt instruments
(see note 35(e)(i)), are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented within equity in
the fair value reserve. When an investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Unquoted equity instruments whose fair value cannot reliably be
measured are carried at cost.
Available-for-sale financial assets comprise equity securities and debt securities.
(ii)

Non-derivative financial liabilities - measurement
The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category.
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, and trade and other
payables.
Non-controlling interest
In accordance with the Law on Limited Liability Companies No. 14-FZ dated 8 February 1998,
each participant in a Russian limited liability company is entitled to withdraw from the company
and receive the book value of its participatory share in the company, if the company’s charter does
not provide for the opposite. Such rights are recognized as a puttable debt instrument and,
therefore, profit or loss attributable to minority participants is recognized as finance costs.

(iii)

Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of ordinary
shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)
When shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which
includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented in the treasury share reserve.
When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an
increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in additional
paid-in capital.

(n)

Impairment

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss, including an interest in an equityaccounted investee, is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
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Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include:
•

default or delinquency by a debtor;

•

restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

•

indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;

•

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the Group;

•

economic conditions that correlate with defaults;

•

the disappearance of an active market for a security; or

•

observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a
group of financial assets.

In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those
found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred
but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.
In assessing collective impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default,
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to
whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be
greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Group
considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are
written off. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the
discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the losses
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any
principal repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to
application of the effective interest method are reflected as a component of interest income. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security increases and the
increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, then the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in
profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale
equity security is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Equity-accounted investees
An impairment loss in respect of an equity-accounted investee is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss, and is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.
(ii)

Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. Subject to an operating segment
ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than
one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested
for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating
unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU
(group of CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of
CGUs) on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(o)

Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost.
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(i)

Warranties
A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The
provision is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

(ii)

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a
provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with
that contract.

(p)

Leases

(i)

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a
lease. This will be the case if the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
At inception or upon reassessment of an arrangement, the Group separates payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements
on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Group concludes for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an
amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as
payments are made and an imputed finance charge on the liability is recognised using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

(ii)

Leased assets
Assets held by the Group under leases that transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised on the Group’s statement
of financial position.

(iii)

Lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability.
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(iv)

Other expenses
To the extent that the Group’s contributions to social programs benefit the community at large and
are not restricted to the Group’s employees, they are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(q)

Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period,
adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted
for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise
convertible notes and share options granted to employees.

(r)

Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Group’s CEO, who is the Group’s chief operating decision maker, to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance.
Segment results that are reported to the Group’s CEO include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.

36.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following new Standards, amendments to Standards and Interpretations are not yet effective as
at 31 December 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. The Group has not yet analysed the likely impact of the new standards and
improvements on its financial position or performance. The Group plans to adopt these
pronouncements when they become effective.
•

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is to be issued in phases and is intended ultimately to replace
International Financial Reporting Standard IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The first phase of IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and relates to the
classification and measurement of financial assets. The second phase regarding classification
and measurement of financial liabilities was published in October 2010. The Group recognises
that the new standard introduces many changes to the accounting for financial instruments and
is likely to have a significant impact on Group’s consolidated financial statements. The impact
of these changes will be analysed during the course of the project as further phases of the
standard are issued. The Group does not intend to adopt this standard early.

•

Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The amendments introduce a mandatory
consolidation exception for certain qualifying investment entities. A qualifying investment
entity is required to account for investments in controlled entities, as well as investments in
associates and joint ventures, at fair value through profit or loss. The consolidation exception
will not apply to subsidiaries that are considered an extension of the investment entity's
investing activities. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively unless impracticable.
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•

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities specify that an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off if
that right is not contingent on a future event; and enforceable both in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all
counterparties. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014, and are to be applied retrospectively.

•

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets. The IASB
has issued amendments to reverse the unintended requirement in IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement to disclose the recoverable amount of every cash-generating unit to which
significant goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets have been allocated. Under the
amendments, the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets
will be required only when the recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.
The amendments apply retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Early application is permitted, which means that the amendments can be adopted at the same
time as IFRS 13.

•

IFRIC 21 Levies provides guidance on accounting for levies in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The
interpretation defines a levy as an outflow from an entity imposed by a government in
accordance with legislation. Levies do not arise from executory contracts or other contractual
arrangements. However, outflows within the scope of IAS 12 Income taxes, fines and penalties,
and liabilities arising from emission trading schemes are explicitly excluded from the scope.
The interpretation confirms that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when – and only when
– the triggering event specified in the legislation occurs. An entity does not recognise a liability
at an earlier date, even if it has no realistic opportunity to avoid the triggering event. The
interpretation is effective for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014. The
interpretation is applied on a retrospective basis. Early adoption is permitted.

•

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting add a
limited exception to IAS 39, to provide relief from discontinuing an existing hedging
relationship when a novation that was not contemplated in the original hedging documentation
meets specific criteria. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014. Early application is permitted.
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